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CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Condensed Income Statements

{Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(Unaudited)
For the six-month periods ended
Notes June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

et SRl i v B S R B R S e R s 3 5 672,076 747,600
08t OF SIS ..ot e et eeeeses s s e bs e s s b e e e ie s e sse s At e b e as s e e A e e er e e 4 e s e e e mn g et e eneenreerne e e e e enaeaneenee 2E (343,740) (391,630)
Gross profit 328,336 355,964
Administrative and selling eXpenses........ccoiiiiiiii i s (98,612) (108,492)
DSt D O O D IS S b b P S S T e v B s et e (46,248) (35,798)
(144,860) (164,290)

Operating earnings before other expenses, net 183,476 191,674

BT X PBNSES, B s e S B s A T e B s T s 5 (274) (7.115)
Operating earnings 183,202 184,559
FINARCIAl BRTIENSE, ... s esrcsnessasesssss srsnsnssssnsnansnsansssssanasass ons sspea adh SoR oA TR R VNI AT R A T 3 (29,378) (40.,565)
Other fiNancial EXPENSES; MB L .e i siissmimisusisistsss sisessssssssa sisgs dois ses st 5osss kP FEETTP LT TR FSERSS 3,6 (234) (544)
Foreign exchange results 11,795 (1,484)
Earnings before income tax 165,385 141,966
TTMCOMIE TX 11verseeveseeesseeessuesseseseeeeeeessaseestessasseesns et e sseseeasesemeeaesmaeas ssmsesas et ebesame st ebesane s an et ar s saneeas 17A (64.516) (59,232)
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME 100,869 82,734
Non-controlling interest NEt iNCOME ......occviviierirnierireee s 313 307
CONTROLLING INTEREST NET INCOME $ 100,556 82,427

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE 19 $ 0.18 0.15
DILUTED EARNINGS PER _LIARE N 19 $ 0.18 0.15

The accompanying notes are part of these consafidated condensed financial statemgnts.
Viglet Abel Hemahdes Qufatero
Accountant
T.P. 41028-T




CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(Unaudited)
For the six-month periods ended

Notes June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME $ 100,869 82,734
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met:

Currency translation of foreign subsidiaries. ... 49,301 (53.786)
Total other items of other comprehensive income for the period.........cooveiiiiiiinnnns 49,301 (53,786)
CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD .....ccviinnrnnennnensns 150,170 28,948
Non-controlling interest comprehensive INCOME. ........oooviviiiiniiiinicn e 313 307
CONTROLLING INTEREST COMPRE}ENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD........c..... $ 149,857 28,641

The accompanying notes are part of these consolidafdd condensed financial statemphts

Carmhjlo Gonzalez”
Legal Representatiye

£/ J/~/7 '

Accofintant
T.P. 41028-T




CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(Unaudited)
As of June 30, As of December 31,
Notes 2016 2015
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cashi-and cash SAUIVBIEITS i isosisiseviismmis s s ismsns e asmas et fr et rsse s d8akams st mmana st suions 2 1s 50,541 53.635
Trade receivables less allowance for doubtful acCOUNES ..o 8 120,326 91.568
Accounts receivable from related parties ... e s 9 553 3.222
Other accounts.Teceivable (i iiiiiamuaiiiisinsmiinniiia i s i 104 12.355 12.694
Taxes receivable 26,634 25.695
) = 1 1] ¢ - T L 1 76,399 86,134
(NG CUTTEIIE ASSEIS, .. veresusrssssssensarsnssnnnsssersnssrsssasssnressanrsssmsonmss semssars e pAds 4848 B aveisnnsvrdad iodessrdepovknsd 1 17.987 14,421
Total CUITenE A SO S, v e TR oy s L VO M S S T S 0 304,795 287.369
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other investments and non-current accounts receivable ... 10B 20,809 20.868
Property, machinery and equipment, NEt........ovviieurer it e, 13 1,217,641 1,093,359
Goodwill, intangible assets and deferred assets , NEL ..o 14 1,805,841 1,786,895
DETCITEA IMOOME TAXES .ovveveeeeiiiviiaresresesesesareesesesaressesescbesas s b s s sman s b ebs bR s baE s s r e nr s mm et 9,354 8,439
Total non-current assets ........ccccveeunn. 3,053,645 2.909,561
TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,358,440 3,196,930
CURRENT LIABILITIES
SHOTEIIEAEDL. .. ... . i o o o s i S P i i 5 |$ 13,459 8.067
TTAAE PAYADIES ....vovvvvetieerieireee et ses e eaes e es bbb 124,924 120.274
Accounts payable to related Parties .........o.ooovieiiiii s 9 300,935 268.512
TAXES PAYADIC 1...vvoveicrirtsres et s 51,463 50.634
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 16 83.283 76,758
Total CUrrent HABIHIIES ..oviererieieee st 574.064 524.245
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term debt cimissism wimrasiissimiiimin 15 6,662 8,046
Long-term accounts payable to related parties 9 764.405 822,388
EMPIOYEE DENETILS 1..ovuvveivsiiisisrireiiiesssssss ettt st 38.003 32.384
Deferred iNCOME TAXES ...cverveecinieeiee e 499,008 484,522
Other non-current liabilities 16 8,393 8,530
Total NON-CUITent HADITIIES ......ooirieee e reesssarise e ces b as b e as s sn s s s s 1,316,471 1.355.870
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,890,535 1,880,115
STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Controlling interest
Common stock and additional paid-in capital.......ccoocoveeiiniii e gga 1,464,990 1.464.986
Other equity reserves 18B (826,285) (876,387)
RELAINEA BAIMITIZS. 1. rreerereeeraiirtssrenserss s st sees e bbb s a8 15C 722887 627,396
INEE TTICOTTIC 1+ vreereereeeeeeees e ettt eae e e e oa s b ras s s b e s e 100,556 95.491
Total coONtrolling INTETEEL .....vversicierr oot 1,462,148 1.311,486
Non-controlling interest... | ..o f ........................................................... 18E 5757 5.329
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY l 1,467,905 1,316,815
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY $ 3,358,440 3,196,930
The accompanying notes are part of these cgnsolidated condensed fingicial statements.
s LA 3
Vic : 2}% ngé
/ Accowntant

T.P. 41028-T




CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

{Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(Unaudited)
For the six-month periods ended

As of June 30, As of June 30,
Notes 2016 2015
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated net income $ 100,869 82,734
Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization 0F @SSELS .......cv it 4 42,575 44,675
Provisions and others eXPenses .......ccoiioriiirisecne s (612) 2.120
Financial expense, other financial income and foreign exchange results ... 17,817 42,593
[NCOME LAXES .ovvreeirree e o 1TA 64.516 59,232
Loss on the sale of fiXed aSSELS.......cceiiiiiieririe e 51 4,058
Changes in working capital, excluding income taXes ..o 21.983 25.748
Net cash flow provided by operating activities before interest and inCcoOme taxXes...oevrceresnessrsnsss 247,199 261,160
Financial expense paid in cash (32,959) (36.059)
TriCorne taXEs Paith T CASHL ausm i i oo bR o518 5449w P M S G KR AT (64,189) (63,075)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities, 150,051 162,026
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Property, machinery and equipmeEnt, ML ......vovuremicieremiiesiereese st (96,408) (82.261)
Financial inComMe......cooerionrerieeinisnnenee s 1,032 975
Intangible assets and other deferred charges (5.567) (7.546)
Long term assets and OThers, NEL.......ocoooviiiiiis e 58 2.578
Net cash flows used in investing activities (100,885) (86,254)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Related partics debt PAYMENTS......cccvv oot rebes e st s (379,616) (339,592)
Related parties debt................ 325,641 283,992
Non-current liabilities, net 61 (10,708)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (53,914) (66,308)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..... D S I ek T (4,748) 9.464
Cash conVersion CIIECE, TEL ..viviiiiiieiesiessereeseiaeeiaese e e se e re e e e ssbssssesasssesassassseaseaessnrnssssasees 1.654 (2.553)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period ... 53,635 51,772
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE PERIOD 718 50,541 58,683
Changes in working capital, excluding income taxes:
Trade TeCETVABIEE, IB v i cnocsmes s 4688 60y 555 v 0 00 S S0 BN oS A SRS sd ey $ (27.225) (4.922)
* Other accounts receivable and OEr ASSELS ............owrvwvssrrsviericssissersesseesrsssasaion T (6,888) (4.034)
Inventories........... 8,814 31
Trade payables 4,650 (1,644)
Short-term related parties, n 32,778 20,214
" Other accounts payable and d¢crued eXPEnSES ..o ferereieccrnisis e, 9.854 16,103
Changes in working capital, exdluding income taxes $ 21,983 25,748
The accompanying notes are part of thesg donsolidated condensed fingdreial statements.

. amfijo/Gonzalez Tellez Victo,
L£gal Representative !
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CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

1) DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A., was constituted under the laws of Spain on April 17, 2012 as capital stock corporation (S.A.) for an undefined period
of time. The entity is a subsidiary of CEMEX Espafia, S.A. (“CEMEX Espafia”), also organized under the laws of Spain, as well as an indirect
subsidiary of CEMEX, S.A.B. de C.V,, a public stock corporation with variable capital (S.A.B. de C.V.) organized under the laws of Mexico. The
statutory purpose and main activities of CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. consist of the subscription, acquisition, tenure, enjoyment, management or
sale of securities and share holdings, as well as the management and administration of securities representing the stockholders’ equity (own funds) of
non-resident entities in Spanish territory through the corresponding organization of material and human resources. Based on its statutory purpose,
CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. is the indirect holding company (parent) of entities whose main activities located in Colombia, Panama, Costa Rica,
Nicaragua, Guatemala, El Salvador and Brazil, are all oriented to the construction industry through the production, marketing, distribution and sale of
cement, ready-mix concrete, aggregates and other construction materials. The common shares of CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A., are listed in the
Colombian Stock Exchange (Bolsa de Valores de Colombia, S.A. or "BVC") under the symbol CLH.

The term the “Parent Company” used in these accompanying notes to the financial statements refers to CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. without its
subsidiaries. The terms the “Company” or “CEMEX Latam” refer to CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. together with its consolidated subsidiaries.
When the term “CEMEX” is used, refers to CEMEX, S.A.B. de C.V. and/or some of its subsidiaries, which are not direct or indirect subsidiaries of
the Parent Company. The issuance of these consolidated financial statements was authorized by the management and the Board of Director of the
Parent Company on July 27, 2016, prior favorable report of the Audit Committee.

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied to these consolidated condensed financial statements as of June 30, 2016, are the same as those applied in the
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2015.

2A) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE

The consolidated condensed financial statements and the accompanying notes were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) effective as of June 30, 2016, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"), as well as with the
International Accounting Standard 34, Interim Financial Statements.

The consolidated condensed balance sheets as of June 30, 2016 and as of December 31, 2015, as well as the consolidated condensed income
statements, the consolidated condensed statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated condensed cash flows statements and the consolidated
condensed statements of changes in stockholders’ equity for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, as well as their related disclosures
included in the notes to the financial statements, have not been audited.

The IFRS consolidated financial statements are presented quarterly to the securities and exchange regulator in Colombia, due to the registration of the
Parent Company’s shares with the aforementioned authority for their trading on the BVC.

Presentation currency and definition of terms

The presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements is the dollar of the United States of America (“United States™), which is also the
functional currency of the Parent Company considering that, is the main currency in which the Parent Company realizes its operations and settles its
obligations. The amounts in the financial statements and the accompanying notes are presented in thousands of dollars of the United States, except
when specific references are made to other currency, according with the following paragraph, or different measuring unit like millions, earnings per
share, prices per share and/or exchange rates. For convenience of the reader, all amounts disclosed in these notes to the financial statements, mainly
in connection with tax or legal proceedings (notes 17B and 21), which are originated in jurisdictions which currencies are different to the dollar, are
presented in dollar equivalents as of June 30, 2016. Consequently, despite any change in the original currency, such dollar amounts will fluctuate
over time duc to changes in exchange rates. These dollar translations should not be construed as representations that the dollar amounts were, could
have been, or could be converted at the indicated exchange rates. Foreign currency translations as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, as well
as for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were determined using the closing and average exchange rates, as correspond, presented
in the table of exchange rates included in note 2D.

When reference is made to “$” or dollar, it means the dollar of the United States, when reference is made to “€” or euros, it means the currency in
circulation in a significant number of European Union (“EU”) countries. When reference is made to “¢” or colones, it means colones of the
Republica de Costa Rica (“Costa Rica”). When reference is made to “R$” or reales, it means reales of the Republica Federativa de Brazil (“Brazil”).
When reference is made to “Col$” or pesos, it means pesos of the Repiiblica de Colombia (“*Colombia”). When reference is made to “C$” or
cordobas, it means cordobas of the Republica de Nicaragua (“Nicaragua™). When reference is made to “Q$” or quetzales, it means quetzals of the
Republica de Guatemala (“Guatemala™).



CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Income statements

The line item “Other expenses, net” in the consolidated condensed income statement consists primarily of revenues and expenses not directly related
to the Company’s main activities, or which are of an unusual and/or non-recurring nature, such as results on disposal of assets, recoveries from
insurance companies, as well as certain severance payments during restructuring processes, among others (note 5).

Statements of cash flows

For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the consolidated condensed statements of cash flows present cash inflows and outflows,
excluding unrealized foreign exchange effects, as well as the following transaction that did not represent sources or uses of cash:

«  For the periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the increase in accounts payable to related parts to long-term $15,785 and $15,418, respectively,
relative to the capitalization of interest on the debt with CEMEX companies.

«  For the periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 the net increase in other equity reserves of $801 and $742, respectively, and the increase in
additional paid-in capital of $4 in 2016 and $188 in 2015, were incurred in connection with exccutive stock-based compensation (note 18B and
18D).

Going Concern

As of June 30, 2016, current liabilities, which include accounts payable to CEMEX companies of approximately $300,935 (note 9), exceeded current
assets in $269.269. The Parent Company’s Board of Directors has approved these consolidated condensed financial statements as of June 30, 2016
under the principle of going concern, considering that the Company will generate sufficient cash flows to enable it to meet any liquidity risk in the
short term. If it is deemed necessary, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company considers that management would succeed in rencgotiating the
maturity of some short-term payables to such CEMEX" companies. For the six month period ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, CEMEX Latam
generated net cash flows from operations, after interest expense and income taxes, of approximately $150,051 and $162,026 respectively.

2B) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include those of CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and those of the entities, in which the Parent Company
exercises control, by means of which the Parent Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Among other factors, control is evidenced when the Parent Company: a) holds
directly or through subsidiaries, more than 50% of an entity’s common stock; b) has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the administrative,
financial and operating policies of an entity, or ¢) is the primary receptor of the risks and rewards. Balances and operations between related parties
are eliminated in consolidation. Each subsidiary is a legally responsible separate entity and maintains custody of its own financial resources.

Changes in the participation of parent company in a subsidiary do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners. Therefore, adjustments to non-controlling interests, which are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary,
not result in adjustments to goodwill and / or recognition of gains or losses in the income statement.

2C) USE OF ESTIMATES AND MANAGEMENT JUDGMENT

The preparation of consolidated condensed financial statement in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of reporting, as well as the revenues
and expenses of the period. These assumptions are continuously reviewed using available information. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

The main items subject to estimates and assumptions include, among others, impairment tests of long-lived assets, allowances for doubtful accounts
and inventories, recognition of deferred income tax assets, as well as the measurement of financial instruments and the assets and liabilities related to
employee benefits. Significant judgment by management is required to appropriately assess the amounts of these assets and liabilities.

2D) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN ENTITIES’ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The most significant closing exchange rates per U.S. dollar as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 for balance sheet purposes, and the average
exchange rates per U.S. dollar for income statements purposes for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2013, are as follows:

2016 2015
Currency Closing Average Closing Average
Colombian pesos ........ 2,916.15 3,075.35 3,149.47 2,503.52
Costa Rican colones....... 554.20 545.25 544.87 540.71
NICAragUAN COTAODAS. ... .. rrermeesriarirsnioretsrssesssemsssstsbesssass st s e nassrasa s srssnases 28.61 28.33 27.93 26.98
Guatemalan QUELZAIES ...c.c.cvvierieieriireeseer e s 7.64 7.68 7.63 7.66
Bz 1A TRAIES st iuaveviviives it st samassas s Ha SR AV SR 5N AP SO R 3.21 3.64 3.90 3.00




CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2E) COST OF SALES, ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Cost of sales represents the cost production of inventories at its selling time including depreciation, amortization and depletion of assets involved in
production and expenses related to storage in producing plants. Cost of sales excludes expenses related to personnel, equipment and services involved
in sale activities and storage of product at points of sales, as well as costs related to warchousing of products at the selling points, which are included
as part of administrative and sclling expenses. Cost of sales includes freight expenses of raw material in plants and delivery expenses of the
Company’s ready-mix concrete business, nevertheless cxcludes freight expenses of finished products between plants and points of sale and freight
expenses between points of sales and the customers’ facilities, which are included as part of the distribution expenses.

For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, selling expenses included as part of the administrative and selling expenses line item
amounted to $15,111 and $19,251 respectively.

3) SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY GEOGRAPHIC OPERATING SEGMENTS

The financial policies applied to elaborate the condensed financial information by geographic operative segments are consistent with those that are
described in the consolidated condensed financial statements for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. The scgment “Rest of CLH”
refers to the Company’s operations in Guatemala, Nicaragua, El Salvador and Brazil. In addition, the segment “Others” relates mainly to the Parent
Company, including its corporate offices in Spain and its research and development offices in Switzerland, as well as adjustments and climinations
resulting from consolidation.

Income statements

Selected consolidated condensed income statements’ information by geographic operating segments for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016
and 2015 are as follow:

Net Sales Less: Operating Other
(including Depreciation earnings Other financial
related Less: Related Operating and before other expenses, Financial expenses,
2016 parties) parties Net Sales EBITDA amortization expenses, net net expenses net
Colombia .............. $ 338,988 (7) 338,981 115,777 (12,713) 103,064 (985) (12,723) (667)
Panama..........c....... 129,782 = 129,782 57,944 (8.989) 48,955 160 (3,913) 362
Costa Rica............. 92,024 (10,360) 81,664 34,672 (3,059) 31,613 40 (249) 61
Restof CLH.......... 134,129 (1.060) 133,069 44,394 (2,830) 41,564 28 (1,594) 650
CHREES sy (11,420) — (11,420)  (26,736) (14,984) (41,720) 483 (10,899) (640)
Totaluerureerresressesssess S 683,503 (11,427) 672,076 226,051 (42,575) 183.476 (274) (29,378) (234)
Net Sales Less: Operating Other
(including Depreciation earnings Other financial
related Less: Related Operating and before other expenses, Financial expenses,
2015 parties) parties Net Sales EBITDA amortization _expenses, net net expenses net
Colombia .............. $ 374,348 (90) 374,258 127,681 (13,972) 113,709 (2,705) (7,022) (1,151)
Panama.................. 150,944 - 150,944 61,419 (9,274) 52,145 (4,440) (3,328) 51
Costa Rica............. 96.884 (7.,401) 89,483 39,267 (3.238) 36,029 24 (74) 30
Rest of CLH.......... 142,363 (1,022) 141,341 39,806 (2,687) 37.119 (81) (1,830) 526
Others ......ceeevvvenees (8,426) — (8,426) (31,824) (15,504) (47,328) 87 (28.311) —
g 1] P e | 756,113 (8,513) 747,600 236,349 (44,675) 191,674 (7.115) (40,565) (544)

Net sales by product and geographic operating segments for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 Cement Concrete Aggregates Other products Others Net sales
Colombia ovvvveerreceeeeee s B 195,159 117,271 6.613 19,938 - 338,981
PATATTA L covsnsmsmiirensssmsssmrmima s 84,950 39,396 1,777 3,659 - 129,782
Costa RiCa....coveeeiieiini i 52,254 8.961 11,949 8,500 = 81,664
Rest of CLH..oovveiei i 114,546 9,521 1,229 7,773 - 133,069
OLhETS vooveeeeecvesinesreseeesnesaesanessarssres — - - - = (11,420) ; (11.420)
Total $ 446,909 175,149 21,568 39,870 (11,420) 672,076




CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Net sales by product and geographic operating segment — continued

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2015 Cement Concrete Aggregates Other products Others Net sales
Colombia s $ 194,756 152,643 8,849 18,010 - 374,258
P AN AT scawvamimos hivss soopnconsas sissms sovnses 96,353 44,897 2,052 7,642 - 150,944
GOSABICH oovoosmssmmamaronimnissvnsss: 60,323 10,951 9.104 9,105 - 89,483
Rest of CLH.... 105,935 12,381 2,406 20,619 — 141,341
OThErs ..o - P S = (8,426) (8,426)
Total 5 457,367 220,872 22,411 55,376 (8,426) 747,600

Balance sheets

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, selected consolidated condensed balance sheets’ information by geographic scgments is as follows:

Total Total Net assets by Capital
2016 Assets Liabilities segment expenditures
COROMIDIA .o s i i s el 2,027,039 749,236 1,277,803 92,342
Panama............cocoveeenens 581,427 237,787 343,640 2,806
Costa Rica....... 112,177 42,517 69,660 354
Rest of CLH 280,713 160,614 120,099 2,077
BT s s o A B B S B e 357,084 700,381 (343,297) -
Total 3,358,440 1,890,535 1,467,905 95,579
Total Total Net assets by Capital
Assets Liabilities segment expenditures
(S OVOTIBIA iz rivssssseniosvmissrsosimsssssnins Sensviomsitshsit oot o msnms sy o arnns 1,826,232 645,873 1,180,359 156,429
Panama......... 569,798 240,907 328,891 18,659
€052 RUCA....cverevsiveit sttt n e s e s 92,199 36,158 56,041 9,465
RESt OFf CLH ..ottt s 237,768 173,360 64,408 11,364
ONBIS .ovvinorinmssrrssessensassssmassnssssssansnsssansnysansarenssanes o danissnpioiss 4555 470,933 783,817 (312,884) -
Total 3,196,930 1,880,115 1,316,815 195,917
4) DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
Depreciation and amortization expense for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is detailed as follows:
2016 2015
Depreciation and amortization expense of assets used in the production process... v 8 29,774 31,750
Depreciation and amortization expense of assets used in administrative and sclhng actwmes 12,801 12,925
$ 42,575 44,675
5) OTHER EXPENSES, NET
The detail of other expenses, net for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:
2016 2015
Results from the valuation and sale of assets, sale of scrap and other products and
NON-OPETALING EXPENSES, MEL (.. ruvimersesiseecseaes skttt ab bbb bbb $ 543 (4,119)
Damages réCOVeties s nmmanmm i 20 371
Assumed taxes, fines, and other penalties ........ (645) (919)
Severance payments and other personnel LOSI.S for rcorganlzatmn . (192) (2,448)
$ (274) (7,115)
6) OTHER FINANCIAL EXPENSES, NET
Other financial expenses detail, net for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:
2016 2015
Interest cost on employee BENEFILS ..ot B (1,265) (1,520)
Financial iIncome......cccoovvvvvvenieenicencns . 1,031 976
$ (234) (544)




CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)
T CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Consolidated cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015

$ 42,910 47,386
7,631 6,249

Cash and bank aCCOUNTS........oecvverreriismmeees i
Fixed-income securities and other cash eqUIVAIENLS ........ccovviiirnmin

$ 50,541 53,635

8) TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Consolidated trade accounts receivable as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are detailed as follows:

2016 2015

T e A COUNLS TECBIVADIE . eversreserensasmesessesssesnsessassrassensesoomeasms bbpitsbisssessis i sstasize. B 124,490 97,265
Allowances for dOUbtfUl ACCOUNTS. ........c.iivirrerereereree i s s bbb e (4,164) (5.697)

$ 120,326 91,568

9 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Balances receivable from and payable to related parties as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are detailed as follows:

Short-term accounts receivable 2016 2015

CEMEDR Bapnila: Sl i i s saasmiive. 3 256 -
CEMEZX Central, S.A. de C.V oo 122 383
New Sunward HOLINE B.V. .. s 81 76
CEMEX de Puerto Rico, Inc............. 71 237
Business Material Funding SL.......... 15 15
CEMEX Dominicana, S.A........ 5 37
CEMEX Research Group, AG ... 3 1,674
CEMEX Denmark ApS.... - 627

$ 553 3,222

Short-term accounts payable

W Surward FIoAding BV st simosnivonsismsmss s s s s, 143,588 144,027
CEMEX Espafia; S:A; 2 i niaasmamiiinimiss 113,566 113,245
CEMEX Research Group, AG ®.....ccoovovrinmnimninnriecinniniinsns 16,191 1,132
CEMEX Central, S.A. de C.V.* .. 11,595 540
CEMEX Holdings Inc. * ....ccccoeunnee 9,702 2,488
CEMEX, SAAB. A C.V. 5 oottt see et sess s et ses s e85t 4,110 =
CEMEX Internacional, S.A. de C.V. ooovoeereeeeeesessesessssssesssmsssssessmssesessossnssssessessesssns 1,304 891
CEMEX Trading, LLC ...oovuivimresrmssesssessssssiessmseseesssssssossssssssssssssssssessssesssesssiensssess 613 5,687
Fujur, S.A. de CV. i s ssssssssensas 90 174
Pro Ambiente, S.A. de C.V. i 84 71
CEMEX MENXIn, SAL de:CiV ..o Giviisesios i B bt e LS e S T 52 217
Latinamerican Trading S.A.........ccocvimiieerisreiirisss e es e s 23 -
CEMEX Jamaica Limited....... 14 13
CEMER Pt S A s s o s s oo i oy oo 801 - 22
N s e B TR S S 0 B A V¥ S S s e R 3 5

$ 300,935 268,512

Long-term accounts payable
New Sunwaard HOUHNE BV, L....ooousmsensssursemmsoneessorsissssssedisissssisnbinisisss siosisisiissbssiiessnsionsssisisimiisisiss. 9 764,405 822,388

$ 1,065,340 1,090,900

i. The balances as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 include: a) loan agreement and accrued interest negotiated by Corporaciéon Cementera Latinoamericana
S.L.U. of $361,503 in 2016 and $349,978 in 2015; b) loan agreement and accrued interest negotiated by CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. of $70,540 in 2016 and
$85,020 in 2015, as well as a revolving credit of $113,647 in 2016 and $85,316 in 2015; c) loan agrecment and accrued interest negotiated by Cemento Bayano,
S.A. of $129,950 in 2016 and $128,458 in 2015; and d), loan agreement and accrued interest negotiated by CEMEX Bogota Investments B.V. of $232,353 in 2016
and $317,644 in 2015.



CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Transactions with related parties — continued

2. Refers to a loan originally negotiated by CEMEX Colombia with CEMEX Espaiia in October 2010. At its maturity in December 2014, this loan was renegotiated

on market conditions at six-month LIBOR rate plus 275 basis points, and its new maturity is on December 28, 2016.

3. Royalties payable pursuant to technical assistance, use of licenses and brands, software and administrative processes agreements.

4. Royalties payable pursuant to technical assistance agreements
5. The balances outstanding were generated from imports of gray cement.

6. These balances are generated from technical assistance received by the Company.

The maturities of non-current accounts payable as of June 30, 2016 are as follows:

Debtor 2017 2018 Total
CEMEX Bogot4 Investments B.V. (7% annual)... PR, | 39,532 113,539 153,071
Corporacién Cementera Latinoamericana, S.L.U. (7% annual) 15,518 312,842 328,360
CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. (7% annual) ... 13,737 140,687 154,424
Cemento Bayano, S.A. (3M LIBOR + 415 bps) v = 128,550 128,550
$ 68,787 695,618 764,405

i The London Inter-Bank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, is the variable rate used in international markets for debt denominated in dollars. On June 30, 2016, 3 and 6-
month LIBOR was 0.6401% and 0.9289% respectively. The contraction *“bps" means basis points. One hundred bps equals 1%.

The Company’s main transactions entered into with related parties for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are shown below:

Purchases of raw materials 2016 2015
CEMEX Holdings Inc... JE OO OO U ESOUP PP RROTTUTRPISU. 20,256 -
CEMEX Internacional, SA de(,V 3,168 -
CEMEX Trading, LLIC ...coiiiiiviirmiresiioiiiisiiissisissiserisssssssssasisnstarsssassansaspss sess st as et s b ias sasstsassssans s 1,960 32.507
$ 25,384 32,507

Administrative and sale expenses 2016 2015
Meoris de México; S.Au e TV it s v s s serssopiases B 4 -
CEMEX Central, S:A. de C.V. .oiiiiiiniiniissaiiiosniisiii s sasstssasnssssnssgas sasssess sestsassssassosssssaes 2 =
6 —

Royalties and technical assistance 2016 2015
CEMEX Research Group, AG. ......cccrueiemiiiiiiiaeissss st st s $ 17,745 18,664
CEMEX Central, S.A. A& €.V, ciiviiiiiosieiiiesieiaesiisesissionisssssmnss misissbassn ssssasdssmssinisssinssssassasanssassseas 11,775 13,801
] B |2 o £ L g R T T 4,084 4,911
$ 33,604 37,376

Financial expenses 2016 2015
Neor Sunward FIOIING IV, . .vrocsocneses i i S s i B 27,408 35,523
CEMEX Espaifia, S.A. . i 1,970 1,755
Construction Funding Corporatlon - 110
CEMEX Hungary K.F.T. ... - 88
$ 29,378 37,476
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Transactions with related parties — continued

Pursuant to the services and the rights of use, operation and enjoyment of CEMEX brands, names and intcllectual property assets, under the
agreement of non-exclusive use, enjoyment and exploitation of license asset, management services agreement and business support and licensing
agreement, CEMEX Latam Holdings has agreed to pay CEMEX (which includes CEMEX, S.A.B. de C.V., CEMEX Research Group, A.G. as well
as CEMEX Central, S.A. de C.V.), consistent with the market practices and principles of unrelated parties, a fee equivalent to 5% of consolidated
revenues. The aforementioned fee cannot be increased without the consent of the independent directors of CEMEX Latam Holdings expressed during
a meeting of the board of directors.

During the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the members of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, in consideration for services
rendered, accrued compensation of approximately $127 and $152, respectively. There are no advances or loans granted by the Company to such
directors and the Company has not provided guarantee on any directors’ obligations. Moreover, the Company has not assumed obligations for
pensions or insurance for such directors.

In addition, for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the aggregate compensation accrued by the Company’s top management was
approximately $2,575 and $2,878, respectively. Out of these totals, approximately $2,515 in 2016 and $2,692 in 2015 correspond to base
remuneration plus performance bonuses including pensions and other postretirement benefits. In addition, approximately $59 in 2016 and $187 in
2015 of the aggregate compensation corresponded to allocations of shares under the executive compensation programs in CEMEX’s and the Parent
Company’s shares.

In the Company’s cement operations in Panama, which represented approximately 13% of its consolidated sales during the six-month period ended
June 30, 2016, the Company carries out transactions with Industrias Basicas, S.A, competitor and local producer of cement, in market conditions and
for not significant amounts. A subsidiary of CEMEX, S.A.B. de C.V., indirect parent of the Parent Company, has an equity interest of 25% in the
common stock of Industrias Bésicas, S.A., which is an entity neither controlled nor consolidated by CEMEX.

10) OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
10A) OTHER CURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Consolidated other accounts receivable as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
NON-TAAE ACCOUNTS FECEIVADIE ... vverveeeeeeessesessseesesesssssseesseessresebssssssasssssessssnssssssssseastseesiseensssnsessnsassss | 9 8,146 7,271
Restricted cash "o 2,871 4,401
L.0ans t0 employees ANA OTHETS ... ..vceririirirtries et 1,338 1,022
$ 12,355 12,694

1 Restricted cash refers to guaranty deposits made by CEMEX Colombia to Liberty Seguros, S.A. and by CEMEX Panama to Citibank, N.A. to secure the letter of
credit acquired in the execution of the contract of the Panama Canal.

10B) OTHER INVESTMENTS AND NON-CURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Consolidated balances of other assets and non-current accounts receivable as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are detailed as follows:

2016 2015
Loans and notes receivable ' ........ocovvvierriens ot s 18,512 18,548
Guaranty deposits and VAT recoverable L. enermarsnmrensanne 1,916 1,955
Other NOM-CUTTEIIE ASSCLS ¥ .evveeseeeveeseseesereresessessresssssesesssssssssessssssesesessusises 381 365
$ 20,809 20,868

I The combined balances of these lines items mainly include: a) a fund of CEMEX Panama to secure seniority premium payments as of June 30, 2016 and December
31,2015 of $2,303 and $2,270, respectively; b) Emission Reductions Certificates granted by the United Nations to qualified projects in Costa Rica for the reduction
of CO2 emissions of $1,710 as of June 30, 2016 and $1,792 as of December 31, 2015; ¢) advance payments for the purchase of fixed asscts of $8,510 as of June 30,
2016 and $8,464 as of December 31, 2015; d) accounts receivable from the sale of land of $3,848 as of June 30, 2016 and ¢) advances for housing projects in Costa
Rica of $1,060 as of June 30, 2016 and $1,408 as of December 31, 2015.

2 Refers mainly to VAT receivable in El Salvador of $1,121 as of June 30, 2016 and $1,315 as of December 31, 2015 as well as legal deposits in Brazil of $794 as of
June 30, 2016 and $640 as of December 31, 2015.

3 Refer mainly to other investments of, Panama, Guatemala, Brazil and Nicaragua of $381 as of June 30, 2016 and $365 as of December 31, 2015.
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11) INVENTORIES

Consolidated balances of inventories as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are summarized as follows:

2016 2015
Materials:and SUPPIIES: i i i e L b e A TS (VR Bt ahias 28,263 31,994
PN shed B S v s e vt R i T B R 10,434 13,289
WOTK=INePIOCESS w..ciuiniariieriiisnensainmssiiiiimtiniunisiiasesssssiasiisnesssissenssnssanssses 000000 IO0TTARIIISESNo S e ars s nas e Se e ass - 17,350 19,921
RAW IIATRTIAS s ve oo o e o 6 Ve e 50 A SRR G s B ey s F e 5 14,051 18,558
IV T OTY: T AT s s 0 T F A P F A OO PP 7.178 3.290
I ATV BTIEOTIRS cuusinvu s et sas s s v A 43 5 4 5 S S A PGS Om e S S 1,307 343
Allowance TOr ODSOIESCEIITE .. oiivaiissvsniimissstatsauirisissisnsssanivgrasnissrsssiesransasassasprasmegsrssponmsnesasoarsrssssesing (2,184) (1,261)
$ 76,399 86,134
12) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consolidated other current assets are detailed as follows
2016 2015
Advance payments '....... S S T R A S st B 16,164 11,938
Aot el RO Al 2 e s e T T T S v SRS G s S s s 1,823 2,483
$ 17,987 14,421

1 As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the line item of advance payments includes $16,089 and $11,904, respectively, associated with advances to suppliers
of inventory and insurance premiums.

2 Assets held for sale are stated at their estimated realizable value and include mainly properties received in payment of trade reccivables by CEMEX Costa Rica,
Panama and Nicaragua.

13) PROPERTY, MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 the consolidated balances of property, machinery and equipment, net were as follows:

2016
Land and Machinery
mineral and Construction
reserves Buildings equipment in progress ' Total
Cost at the end of perfod....c.on i 3 224,548 201,865 743,548 255,773 1,425,734
Accumulated depreciation and depletion ...........ccoeniininininn (24,819) (35,892) (147,382) — (208,093)
Net book value at end of Period.........cccooverrvrvniniisninsnnees $ 199,729 165,973 596,166 255,773 1,217,641
2015
Land and Machinery
mineral and Construction
reserves Buildings equipment  in progress "* Total
Cost at the end of Period.......cc.cc e $ 211,439 194,258 713,789 147,715 1,267,201
Accumulated depreciation and depletion (20,212) (31,076) (122.554) - (173,842)
Net book value at end of Period ...........eeevererererneriinsinse. 9 191,228 163,183 591,233 147,715 1,093,359

1 In July 2014, the Company began the construction of a new cement plant in the municipality of Maceo in the Antioquia department in Colombia with an approximate
capacity of 1.1 million tons. The first phase included the construction of a cement mill, which is in testing and is considered to start commercial operations in the short
term. The next phase is expected to be completed during the last quarter of 2016. CEMEX Latam estimates a total investment of approximately $340 million, of
which, as of June 30, 2016 has invested approximately $261 million.

2 In addition, during 2014, the Company began the construction of a cement mill in Nicaragua with a potential milling capacity of 440,000 tons per year upon
conclusion of the project’s two phases, with a total investment of approximately $55 million. The first phase was concluded and began milling operations in February
2015, with an investment of approximately $22 million. The second phase is expected to start in 2017 subject to market conditions.
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14) GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
14A) BALANCES

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, consolidated goodwill, intangible assets and deferred assets is summarized as follows:

2016 2015
Accumulated Net book Accumulated Net book
Cost amortization value Cost amortization value

Intangible assets of indefinite useful life
GOOAWIll 1ottt D 1,575,801 — 1,575,801 1,575,396 - 1,575,396
Intangible assets of definite useful life
Customer relations ...o...ooveoveeeeeeeeree s 192,793 (76,808) 115,985 192,753 (67,392) 125,361
Extraction permits and licenses.........c.covvvnvenns, 126,379 (17,522) 108,857 100,940 (15,616) 85,324
Industrial property and trademarks .................. 1,590 (1,477) 113 1,410 (1,273) 137
Mining projects.....ccveevcvimaseininairacnenns 1,755 (32) 1,723 705 (28) 677
Other intangibles and deferred assets.............. 3,602 (240) 3,362 - B -

$ 1,901,920 (96,079) 1,805,841 1,871,204 (84,309) 1,786,895

14B) ANALYSIS OF GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT
As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, goodwill balances allocated by operating segment are as follows:

2016 2015

[T = 1 STy PR O OO PTTTPP PSPPSR $ 442,472 450,048
344,703 344,703

316,769 303,971

GIUATEITIALA ... .eoeecveeessessessseessesseerseeressssessnessebaasneaneanesabsabsassaseeresnnsamsnan 237,856 237,297
INTCATAZUA ..ot ra s bbb s 218,913 224,289
Bl SAIVAAOT ........0nnsuneressammeseansamme - dhvsssbansiiiin oot sy oo on 0 s S R W T R R R i 15,088 15,088
$ 1,575,801 1,575,396

During the last quarter of 2015, considering the economic downturn in Brazil among other factors, the Company recognized impairment losses in
such quarter associated with its operating segment in Brazil for a total of $62,366, out of which, $44,983 was related with the full write-off of
goodwill that had been allocated to the aforementioned operating segment, and $17,383 was a reduction of an operating license. The total amount of
the impairment loss corresponded to the excess of the net book value of the operating segment over its value in use, represented by the present value
of estimated cash flows. According to its policy, the Company will perform its annual impairment analysis on goodwill balances during the fourth
quarter, at the level of the groups of Cash Generating Units ("CGUs") to which goodwill balances have been allocated, relating to the Company’s
operations in each country. As of June 30, 2016, the Company has not identified additional impairment indicators that would suggest the need to
anticipate the impairment tests in any country before the fourth quarter, however, the Company closely monitors the situation in Brazil.

15) SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, consolidated debt by type of financial instruments is summarized as follows:

2016 2015
Leasing Bolivar, S.A, DTF anticipated quarterly plus 550 bps LTS 2,097 2,422
Leasing de Occidente, S.A., DTF anticipated quarterly plus 400 bps ™2 .......ccoooovvvvvivimmmnscninninne 1,417 1,636
Leasing Bancolombia, S.A., DTF anticipated quarterly plus 390 bps L2 1,908 2,204
Helm Leasing, S.A., DTF anticipated quarterly plus 385 bps e 1,184 1,367
Leasing Bogota, S.A., DTF anticipated quarterly plus 465 bps " *............. 937 1,082
Ordinary bonds in the Colombian MArket ®...........couecrvirirrrreseermsssssessis s s 3,429 3,175
Promissory note foreign currency variable rate *...........ccooiminrii s 6,873 4,227
Promissory notes t0 Banco de BOZOtA 5 ........vuveerrvierersnmmisisisisinmsssersesssesmissrmssmsssssssssssssssssisssses 2,276 -
TEOEAL . cevinsonsssssssonsaniinnmsssrsessnrassinssepeassnmnsnnsy oot ianssasassenssessmsrsasesasesns i s aoss iy epos oy LTI e 20,121 16,113
Long-term debt......ccceviveiiciieeiiiecn st s 6,662 8.046
SHOMETIIL AEDE ...coovivvsiereitee e eree e ses bbbt s ces e sesaes bbb E s b e e b e b e s 13,459 8,067
The maturities of CEMEX Latam’s consolidated long-term debt as of June 30, 2016, were as follows:
Maturities
.1} B USRS NSSS PP 2,155
20 1 U OP PP PO TS PP s L S 1,078
DTS e e e i i s o A i 8 e R T R R e o e b N R R RS e S e e S 3,429
b 6,662

14
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Short-term and long-term debt— continued

1 The fixed-term deposit rate (Tasa de Depdsito a Término Fijo or DTF) is the average interest rate paid by financial institutions in Colombia on fixed-term
certificates. As of June 30, 2016 the quarterly DTF rate was 6.93%.

2 Refers to capital leases with commercial finance companies denominated in Colombian pesos, which were negotiated in 2012 with a maturity of sixty months. For
the first six months of 2016 and 2015, CEMEX Colombia incurred interest on these capital leases for an amount of $429 and $648, respectively. The assets
acquired through these capital leases have been placed as guarantee for such financial obligations.

3 On July 8, 2015, CEMEX Colombia issued ordinary bonds maturing in 10 years with interest rate of 8.30% in the amount of ten billion Colombian pesos. This
issuance was approved on April 21, 2015 by the Shareholders Meeting of CEMEX Colombia that approved the issuance and the public offering of ordinary bonds
for up to thirty billion Colombian pesos, in order to fulfill with CEMEX Colombia’s corporate dutics and to maintain its status as issuer of securities in the
Colombian market. The issuance was regulated by the Board of Directors of CEMEX Colombia on April 29, 2015.

4 Refers to notes maturing in one year payable by CEMEX Colombia to AV Villas bank of $6,873 as of June 30, 2016 bearing DTF rate plus 4.5% and $4,227 as of
December 31, 2015 bearing DTF rate plus 3.0%.

s Refers to promissory notes maturing in one year payable by CEMEX Colombia to Banco de Bogota of $2,276 as of June 30, 2016.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consolidated other current accounts payable and accrued expenses were detailed as follows:

2016 2015

Accrued eXpenses ... ST S Y R . | 26,824 17,569
Ay AT s O TrY OISO T TS x4 e A s G T S D TS U R ST 19,098 18,166
Others provisions and Habilities..........cceieiri s 16,724 15,520
Provisions for legal claims and other COMMIMENTS ........cooiiiiiiiiiiin s 12,040 16,410
Provision Tor employee DEIEIIES . i s iumssiisospsrimsmissmsess s ssssessases apssassfansasnss vpsig ssssie e st 7,042 8,038
L0111 1= £ T OO OO U 1,555 1,055

$ 83,283 76,758

Current provisions primarily consist of employee benefits accrued at the balance sheet date, insurance and accruals related to legal and environmental
assessments, expected to be settled in the short-term. These amounts are revolving in nature and are expected to be settled and replaced by similar
amounts within the next 12 months.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consolidated other non-current liabilitics were as follows:

2016 2015
Provision for asset retirement c:ibligati(}nsI ................................................... eterrte e ere e rreeeenaeaas $ 4,019 4,410
Others provisions and LHabiliies..........cewemiirmsieeimiesn e et s 3,596 3.639
DIETEITEA FEVETIUC 1uvevirerrieiestesvesesiestaseessesessesssssassrsssaeeseseeneeseeseemeeasea s £ b e bseas s s s bem Rt s Rs s e naenanmsernsshnasebn e e s 778 481
$ 8,393 8.530

1 Asset retirement obligations include future estimated costs for demolition, dismantling and cleaning of production sites at the end of their operation, which are
initially recognized against the related assets and are depreciated over their estimated useful life.

16) INCOME TAXES
17A) INCOME TAXES FOR THE PERIOD

The recognition of income taxes for interim periods is based on the best estimate of the effective income tax rate expected for the full year, which is
applied to the income before income taxes. For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, income tax expense recognized in the
consolidated condensed income statements was as follows:

2016 2015

CUITEIIE INCOTNIE TAXES v vvevsreeveesssseseesessaessessesessesssessseesssesessseseessmssesitsesinse st sessssessssansanssessssrsssssetsasnics 63,796 60,296
D feiTed TG TEKES 1o reursssnnssnrssressssssmassmnsonnss bad b irTibEaoevonerans B I R RV N b o s s e 720 (1,064)

$ 64,516 59,232
Out of which:
COLOMBIA P 2 oot s e st s e e er e b e e s s s s ss s s s ees£en e ep sttt D 36,031 32,773
Costa Rica.. 6,056 7.484
PANAMA. ...cecviiiiiecieecieeiae s e iraeessseerreeenerensnnennaeansassnas 4,516 4,208
Rustof CLEE antlothers:... .oosmesressenmssssenssmsdd R e T SR : 17.913 14.767

$ 64,516 59,232
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Income taxes for the period — continued

Beginning January 1, 2015, a tax on wealth became effective in Colombia, which is calculated considering the net equity for tax purposes outstanding as of January
1, 2015. The aforementioned tax will be effective in 2015, 2016 and 2017. The effect during the six-month period ended June 30, 2016 was approximately $2,328
and is included within income taxes.

In addition, as part of tax modifications effective January 1, 2015, a surcharge on the income tax rate (Jmpuesto sobre la Renta para la Equidad or "CREE") was
implemented, which will be effective from 2015 to 2018 and will generate an increase in the income tax rate in Colombia to the following tax rates: 39% in 2015,

~ 40%in 2016, 42% in 2017 and 43% in 2018.

Includes the Company's operations in Nicaragua, Guatemala, El Salvador and Brazil as well as the effects on income taxes of the Parent Company, other sub-
holding companies and other consolidation adjustments.

17B) UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS AND SIGNIFICANT TAX PROCEEDINGS

CEMEX Latam is involved in several ongoing tax proceedings which have not required the recognition of accruals since the Company docs not
consider probable adverse considering the evidence at its disposal. Nonetheless, the Company cannot assure to obtain a favorable resolution. As of
June 30, 2016, a summary of relevant facts of the most significant proceedings in progress, or which were resolved during the reported periods, were
as follows:

Colombia

e On April 1, 2011, the Colombian Tax Authority (Direccién de Impuestos Nacionales or the “DIAN”) notified CEMEX Colombia of a special

proceeding rejecting certain deductions taken by CEMEX Colombia in its 2009 tax return. The DIAN assessed an increase in the income tax
payable by CEMEX Colombia for an amount in Colombian pesos equivalent to approximately $29 million and imposed a penalty in Colombian
pesos for an amount equivalent to approximately $46 million, both considering the exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. The DIAN argues that
certain expenses are not deductible for fiscal purposes because they are not linked to direct revenues recorded in the same fiscal year, without
considering that future revenue will be taxed under the income tax law in Colombia. CEMEX Colombia responded to the special proceeding on
June 25, 2011. On December 15, 2011, the DIAN issued its final resolution, which confirmed the information in the special proceeding. CEMEX
Colombia appealed such resolution on February 15, 2012. On January 17, 2013, the DIAN confirmed CEMEX Colombia its final resolution. On
May 10, 2013, CEMEX Colombia appealed the final resolution before the Administrative Tribunal of Cundinamarca, which was admitted on
June 21, 2013. On July 14, 2014, CEMEX Colombia was notified about an adverse resolution to its appeal, which confirms the official
liquidation notified by the DIAN. On July 22, 2014, CEMEX Colombia filed an appeal against this resolution before the Colombian State
Council (Consejo de Estado). On September 17, 2015, CEMEX Colombia presented arguments in second instance under this proceeding.
Currently, the process is waiting for judgment since October 7, 2015. At this stage of the proceeding, as of June 30, 2016, CEMEX Latam does
not consider probable an adverse resolution in this proceeding, however is difficult to assess with certainty the likelihood of an adverse result, but
if adversely resolved, this proceeding could have a material adverse impact on CEMEX Latam’s results of operations, liquidity or financial
position.

On September 13, 2012, the DIAN notified CEMEX Colombia an ordinary request for the review of its income tax return for the fiscal year
2011, in connection with the amortization of goodwill of Lomas del Tempisque S.R.L., which was considered tax deductible in such tax return.
On October 5, 2012, CEMEX Colombia rejected the DIAN’s arguments and requested that the case would be dismissed. On August 9, 2013,
CEMEX Colombia received a verification notice from the DIAN, obtaining the faculty to review the aforementioned income tax return, which is
currently being audited. Additionally, on June 28, 2013, CEMEX Colombia requested an amendment project in order to increase the amount of
tax receivable, which was accepted on September 6, 2013. At this stage of the proceeding, as of June 30, 2016, CEMEX Latam does not consider
probable an adverse resolution in this proceeding, however is difficult to assess with certainty the likelihood of an adverse result, but if adversely
resolved, this proceeding could have a material adverse impact on CEMEX Latam’s results of operations, liquidity or financial position.

The municipality of San Luis Tolima (the “Municipality”) has issued requirements to CEMEX Colombia related with the payment of the industry
and commerce tax (impuesto de industria y comercio) in such municipality for the fiscal years from 1999 to 2013. The Municipality argues that
the tax is generated as a result of CEMEX Colombia’s industrial activities in such jurisdiction. CEMEX Colombia considers that its activity in
this municipality is strictly mining and therefore pays royalties for mineral extraction in this jurisdiction, based on the applicable law, which bans
municipalities from collecting the industry and commerce tax, when the amount payable of royalties is equal or exceeds to the amount of such
tax. CEMEX Colombia has duly submitted legal resources appealing these requirements. The combined amount of the proceedings in Colombian
pesos is equivalent to approximately $23 million, considering the exchange rate as of June 30, 2016, of which, approximatcly $9 million
represent purported tax and $14 million corresponds to penalties for inaccuracy. On July 18, 2013, the Colombian State Council issued a final
resolution in favor of CEMEX Colombia in the process for the fiscal year 1999. Moreover, on December 3, 2013, first instance resolutions in
favor of CEMEX Colombia were notified for the fiscal years 2009 and 2010, which the Municipality appealed on December 13, 2013. In
addition, on May 15, 2014, first instance resolutions against CEMEX Colombia were notified by the Court of Tolima for the fiscal ycars 2006
and 2007. The amount of purported taxes for such years in Colombian pesos is equivalent to approximately $1 million plus a penalty for
inaccuracy in Colombian pesos equivalent to approximately $1 million, both as of June 30, 2016. On May 28, 2014, CEMEX Colombia appealed
this resolution before the Colombian State Council.
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Uncertain tax positions and significant tax proceedings — continued

On December 10, 2014, the Municipality issued an official settlement request with respect to the fiscal year 2011, for amounts in Colombian
pesos equivalent for this year to approximately $1 million of purported tax and approximately $1 million of penalties, both considering the
exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. On January 6, 2015, CEMEX Colombia filed an appeal to the official settlement. The Municipality should
have responded to the appeal lodged no later than January 6, 2016. Considering that the Company did not reccive any response, on January 26,
2016, CEMEX Colombia reported to the Municipality the recognition of the positive administrative silence and requested a copy of the file,
which was submitted and whereas there is evidence that there was not any notification by the Municipality to CEMEX Colombia or its legal
representative in connection with the resolution of the appeal for reconsideration. Therefore, CEMEX Colombia currently expects the
Municipality to decide on CEMEX Colombia’s request of recognition of the positive administrative silence. At this stage, CEMEX Colombia
considers that cash outflows in relation to this litigation are not probable.

On March 25, 2015, the Municipality issued a special requirement related to fiscal year 2012, considering the same arguments mentioned in the
proceedings of previous years described above. The amount of purported tax in Colombian pesos for this year is equivalent to $2 million and a
penalty for inaccuracy in Colombian pesos equivalent to approximately $2 million considering the exchange rate as of June 30, 2016. CEMEX
responded to the request within the legal deadline on May 22, 2015. The Municipality should have issued the official liquidation no later than
January 4, 2016. Considering similarly that CEMEX Colombia did not receive any notification of the official liquidation review, during January
2016, CEMEX Colombia requested a copy of the file, was submitted and whereas there is evidence that there was not any notification by the
Municipality to CEMEX Colombia or its legal representative in connection with the official liquidation. Therefore, CEMEX Colombia currently
expects the Municipality to decide on the matter.

As part of the same proceedings with the Municipality mentioned above, on December 10, 2015, a first instance resolution was issued in favor of
CEMEX Colombia for the fiscal year 2008. On March 28, 2016, an edict was issued confirming the first instance resolution that rejected the
purported deficiencies of CEMEX Colombia and ratified the resolution of the industry and commerce tax for fiscal year 2008. CEMEX Colombia
currently expects the Municipality to appeal the decision.

In addition, on March 25, 2016, CEMEX Colombia received a special request for fiscal year 2013 by means of which the Municipality requires
an increasc in the industry and commerce tax for an amount in Colombian pesos equivalent to approximately $2 million and a penalty for
inaccuracy for an amount in Colombian pesos equivalent to approximately $4 million, both considering the exchange rate as of June 30, 2016.
CEMEX Colombia responded this special requirement during the legal opportunity.

On June 13, 2016, CEMEX Colombia received a statement of objections by the Municipality for not providing information, which proposes a
penalty for an amount in Colombian pesos equivalent to approximately $0.25 million. CEMEX Colombia had one month to provide disclaimers
and/or provide evidence in this process, consequently, on July 1, 2016, CEMEX Colombia presented its response under this proceeding.

Costa Rica

« In January 2011, the Costa Rican Tax Department (Direccion General de Tributacion or the "Tax Department") informed the beginning of audits
for the 2008 fiscal year in CEMEX (Costa Rica), S.A. ("CEMEX Costa Rica"), which included income tax, payroll withholding tax and sales tax.
On August 9, 2013, the Tax Department issued a provisional regularization proposal for an amount in Costa Rican colones equivalent to
approximately $9 million, considering the exchange rate as of June 30, 2016, which includes tax, interest and penalties. On August 23, 2013,
CEMEX Costa Rica filed a legal resource against the provisional regularization proposal, arguing that the action has been time barred and
rejecting the proposed adjustments considering that CEMEX Costa Rica has acted in accordance with the applicable tax regulations. On
September 30, 2013, CEMEX Costa Rica was notified of a settlement procedure by means of which the Tax Department dismissed the arguments
presented by CEMEX Costa Rica and ratified the resolution of the provisional regularization proposal. On November 7, 2013, CEMEX Costa
Rica filed a legal resource to revoke the settlement procedure, which should have been resolved by the Tax Department within a 3 month period,
which the Tax Department could extend without consequence, except for the suspension of the calculation of interest. On September 24, 2014,
the Tax Department notifiecd CEMEX Costa Rica of the annulment of the settlement procedure and the resolutions previously issued considering
a unconstitutionality resource challenge accepted by the Constitutional Court of Costa Rica (the "Constitutional Court") against the article of the
tax regulation which served as the basis for issuing the settlement procedure. Nonetheless, simultancously, the Tax Department notified CEMEX
Costa Rica a new settlement procedure and sanctioning resolutions in accordance with the new legal requirements of the new code of rules and
tax procedures. Following the notification of the new settlement procedure, the Constitutional Court clarified that the Tax Department should not
issue new settlement procedures until the Constitutional Court would issue a rule on the constitutionality of the article of the tax regulation. On
October 10, 2014, the Tax Department notificd CEMEX Costa Rica the cancellation of the new (and last) settlement procedure and the
corresponding sanctioning resolutions, arguing that the Constitutional Court admitted an unconstitutionality action brought by a third party
against the payment obligation or guaranty in a tax proceeding, prior to its defense, which is provided for in the new tax regulation; suspending
its application until the Constitutional Court rules on the merits of this action. In view of the above, the Tax Department cannot issue new
settlement procedures or sanctioning resolutions until the Constitutional Court resolves the aforementioned unconstitutionality action. Therefore,
the tax proceeding initiated against CEMEX Costa Rica was annulled and the issuance of the settlement procedure against CEMEX Costa Rica
was suspended. As of June 30 2016, there are no settlement procedures regarding the audit for the 2008 fiscal year against CEMEX Costa Rica.
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17) STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
18A) COMMON STOCK AND ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the line item common stock and additional paid-in capital was detailed as follows:

2016 2015
Treasury Treasury
Authorized shares Total Authorized shares Total
COMMON SIOCK . viiiivsisivemitisminimsisisissimmasinis B 718,124 — 718,124 718,124 - 718,124
Additional paid-in capital..........cocooiiemiinnnn 894,701 147,835 746,866 894,701 (147,839) 746,862
$ 1,612,825 147,835 1,464,990 1,612,825 (147,839) 1,464,986

During the six month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 the Parent Company performed physical deliveries of shares to the executives subject to
the benefits of the long-term stock-based compensation plan (note 18D), which increased additional paid-in capital in the amount of $4 and $188,
respectively, as result of the decrease in treasury shares, which were delivered to these executives.

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Parent Company’s subscribed and paid shares by owner were distributed as follows:

Shares 2016 2015
Owned by CEMEX ESPafial......cc.ccoviinirinmvmmismmsinnensinnssissnsesssssssasnessssniass 407,890,342 407,890,342
Owned by third-party iINVEStOrS........ccoevveriininmnisicicnenneens 148,486,588 148,485,934
Total subscribed and paid SHATES .........overveeereeiceirie s 556,376,930 556,376,276

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Parent Company’s common stock was represented by 578,278,342 ordinary shares with a nominal
value of 1 euro per share. The number of subscribed and paid shares of CEMEX Latam Holdings presented in the table above excludes 21,901,412
and 21,902,066 shares held in the Company’s treasury (treasury shares), respectively.

On June 30, 2016, CEMEX Espafia owns approximately 73.31% of the common shares of the Parent Company, excluding shares held in treasury.
18B) OTHER EQUITY RESERVES

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the balances of other equity reserves are summarized as follows:

2016 2015
Reorganization of cntities under common control and other effects ' .......ooooovveiiiiiiiiiiiininciisiniininns $ (300,422) (300,422)
Translation effects of foreign SUBSIAIATIES ... . ouirerrerereit ettt (534,487) (583,788)
SHRreBamod PAYINEIS Y ... iivusvisesssssaiiiss osiodsdeedssioshistas i dosiassaiosvessass s s S AR A 8,624 7,823
$ (826,285) (876,387)

1 Effects resulting mainly from the difference between the amount of compensation determined in the reorganization of entities effective as of July 1, 2012, by means
of which the Parent Company acquired its consolidated subsidiaries, and the value of the net assets acquired of such subsidiaries, net of other purchase adjustments.

2 Represents the balance of the cumulative effects for the translation of foreign subsidiaries and which are included for each period in the statements of comprehensive.

3 As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the line item other equity reserves includes effects associated with the executive compensation programs based on
CEMEX’s and the Parent Company’s shares (note 18D), and which costs are recognized in the results of each subsidiary during the vesting period against other
equity reserves. Upon physical delivery of the Parent Company’s shares, the amounts accrued in other equity reserves are reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

18C) RETAINED EARNINGS
In accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Law in Spain, the Parent Company must allocate 10% of its annual profit, determined on a

stand-alone basis, to a legal reserve until such reserve reaches at least an amount equivalent to 20% of the Parent Company’s common stock. As of
June 30, 2016, the legal reserve of the Parent Company amounted to $13,045.
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18D) EXECUTIVE STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Based on IFRS 2, Stock-based compensation, the instruments granted to executives of CEMEX Latam are defined as equity instruments, considering
that the services received from employees are settled by delivering shares. The cost of these equity instruments represents their estimated fair value at
the grant date of each plan and is recognized in the income statement during the periods in which the executives render services and vest the exercise

rights.

On January 16, 2013, the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, considering the favorable report of its Nominations and Remuneration Committee,
approved, effective January 1, 2013, a long-term incentives plan for certain executives of CEMEX Latam, consisting of an annual compensation plan
based on the delivery of shares of the Parent Company. The cost associated with this long-term incentives plan is recognized in the operating results
of the companies of CEMEX Latam in which the executives subject to the benefits of the plan render their services. The underlying shares in the
aforementioned long-term incentives plan, which are held in the Company’s treasury, are delivered fully vested during a 4-year period under cach
annual program.

In addition, during the years preceding the implementation of the incentives plan previously mentioned, some executives of the Company
participated in CEMEX’s stock-based long-term incentives program, by means of which, new CEMEX’s Ordinary Participation Certificates
("CPOs") are issued, which are vested and delivered during a services period of four years under cach annual programs. Effective January 1, 2013, all
eligible executives from CEMEX Latam operations stopped receiving CEMEX CPOs.

For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, compensation expense related to the long-term incentive plans based on shares of CEMEX
and the Parent Company described above, which was recognized in the results of operations each subsidiaries against other equity reserves amounted
to $805 and $930, respectively.

18E) NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interest represents the share of non-controlling stockholders in the results and equity of consolidated entities. As of June 30, 2016
and December 31, 2015, non-controlling interest in equity amounted to approximately $5,757 and $5,329, respectively.

18) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Based on [AS 33, Earnings per share (“IAS 33”), basic carnings (loss) per share shall be calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent entity (the numerator) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding (the denominator) during the period. Shares
that would be issued depending only on the passage of time should be included in the determination of the basic weighted average number of shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings (loss) per share should reflect in both, the numerator and denominator, the assumption that convertible instruments are
converted, that options or warrants are exercised, or that ordinary shares are issued upon the satisfaction of specified conditions, to the extent that
such assumption would lead to a reduction in basic earnings per share or an increase in basic loss per share, otherwise, the effects of potential shares
are not considered because they generate anti-dilution.

The amounts considered for calculations of earnings per share (“EPS”) for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Denominator (thousands of shares) 2016 2015

Weighted average number of shares outstanding — Basic EPS ... 556,169 556,153

Effect of dilutive instruments — stock-based cOMPENSALION.....coo i 463 296
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — Diluted EPS ......oooirimis 556,632 556,449

Numerator

CONSONIAALET NEL ILCOMIE oooeoeeosveessssesssssesesssessseessassesseseassseessteseseaseseeeseessssssssnssssresassaesssnssasssesessssres 100,869 82,734
Less: non-controlling interest Net iNCOME .....cvviviseornerrsnserirses st (313) (307)
CONrolling INLErESt NEt INCOME ........vvrovsreeesrssessssssesesiissesssssssssseessseesseesssssssmsssssssssessesserssssssssnies. 100,556 82,427
Controlling Interest Basic Earnings per Share ($ per share) ... $ 0.18 0.15
Controlling Interest Diluted Earnings per Share ($ per share) ..o, $ 0.18 0.15
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COMMITMENTS

20A) CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

As of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company had the following contractual obligations:

(Thousands of dollars) June 30, 2016 2015
Less than More than 5

Debts 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years years Total Total
Long-term debt with related parties b s AL 300,935 764,405 - - 1,065,340 1,090,900
Interest payments on debt B SRR 58,103 68.861 - - 126,964 146,020
Operating leases s A 1,874 3,556 3,505 10,423 19,358 17,697
Capital lease obligations * ...........ccvcevcrvennns 13,459 6,662 - - 20,121 16,113
Pension plans and other benefits I 3,399 6,784 6,697 16,007 32,887 32,887
Raw material, fuel and energy purchase S 42,686 135,993 114,951 20,455 314,085 253,080
Investments in property, plant and equipment T 26,330 - - = 26,300 60,751
Total contractual oblgations ........ccecevvrriniiiinnienniennes $ 446,786 986,261 125,153 46,885 1,605,085 1,617,448

5

6

7

This line item refers to the Company’s liabilitics with related partics described in note 9.

Includes future interest payments under debt owed to third-party creditors, capital leases and debt owed to related parties using the interest rates outstanding on the
contracts as of June 30, 2016.

The amounts of payments under operating leases have been determined on the basis of nominal cash flows. This line item mainly refers to the lease contract
initiated in January 2001 with the Government of the Republic of Nicaragua for a term of 25 years, which includes the operative and administrative assets,
trademark rights, quarry extraction rights and other asscts of Compaiiia Nacional Productora de Cemento, S.A, for $1,700 to less than one year, $3,400 from one
to three vears, $3,400 from three to five years and $10,200 to more than five years. In addition, includes operating leases negotiated by the Parent Company in
2012 with CEMEX Espafia and CEMEX Research Group A.G. with terms of 5 years for its corporate offices in Spain and the research and development offices in
Switzerland for $174 to less than one year, $156 from one to three years, $105 from three to five years and $223 to more than five years, which are renewable at
maturity by agreement of the parties.

Refers to capital leases of machinery and equipment negotiated by CEMEX Colombia in 2012 with an original maturity of 60 months.
Represents the estimated annual payments under defined benefit plans over the next 10 years
Includes commitments of the Company for the purchase of raw material, fuel and encrgy mainly from Colombia, Panama and Nicaragua.

Includes purchase of productive assets mainly for Maceo plant in Colombia.

In addition to the contractual obligations described in the preceding table, As of June 30, 2016, are as follows:

On December 22, 2014, CEMEX Colombia signed an agreement with FLSmidth, Inc., a global provider of equipment for the mining and cement
industries, for the engineering of cquipment, acquisition and supply of equipment for the new cement plant under construction in the municipality
of Maceo (note 13), maturing in September 2016, for an amount of approximately $42 million.

On June 25, 2014, CEMEX Colombia and Wirtsild Colombia S.A. signed a services agreement for the operation and maintenance of the natural
gas clectrical energy generating plant that provides energy under the modality of sclf-generation for the Caracolito plant, for a term of five years
from the signing of the contract, for an amount of approximately $9 million.

On March 28, 2014, CEMEX Colombia signed an agreement with ExxonMobil Colombia S.A. for the supply of a variety of fuels, for a term of
three years from the signing of the contract, for an amount of approximately $26 million.

On November 20, 2013, according to Memorandum Scripture 11, CEMEX Nicaragua, SA signed a contract with the National Cement Production
Company which will be effective from February 5, 2015 until 2026, and commits CEMEX Nicaragua, S.A. to pay a fee of $0.90 per metric ton
produced outside the San Rafacl del Sur plant up to a production of 220 thousand metric tons per year, as economic compensation for raw
material consumption. Annual payments are estimated in $198 and for the next five years in $990.

On November 1, 2013, CEMEX Colombia accepted an offer from Arenas y Gravas La Fontana Limitada, of the same date, by means of which
Arenas y Gravas La Fontana Limitada will supply sand and/or gravel to CEMEX Colombia for a term of five years. Although the final
calculation of the contract value will be determined considering the unitary prices and the goods actually supplied, the annual amount is of
approximately $3 million.

On July 12, 2013, CEMEX Colombia entered into an agreement with B&F Constructores, S.A.S. by means of which B&F Constructores, 5.A.S.
will supply sand and/or gravel to CEMEX Colombia. The agreement has a term of five years. Although the final calculation of the contract’s
value will be determined considering the unitary prices and the raw materials cffectively supplied to the Company, the annual estimated amount
is of approximately $2 million.
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Commitments — continued

On May 23, 2013, CEMEX Colombia accepted the offer of Mincivil, S.A., dated on May 22, 2013, by means of which Mincivil, S.A. will
provide services for the development and mining exploitation of the Suspiro quarry owned by CEMEX Colombia, located in the municipality of
los Patios (North of Santander - Colombia), under the supervision and immediate technical direction and approval of CEMEX Colombia. The
contract has a term of five years without automatic extension. Although the final calculation of the contract value will be determined considering
the unitary prices and the services effectively received, the annual estimated amount is of approximately $9 million.

On January 17, 2007, Cemento Bayano, S.A. and Generacién Eléctrica, S.A. Company (now EN EL FORTUNA, S. A.) signed an agreement for
electric energy supply for the cement utility in Panama. The energy supply initiated on January [, 2010 and is set to terminate on December 31,
2019. Cemento Bayano, S. A. will pay an average amount of approximately $15 million per year.

20B) OTHER COMMITMENTS

In addition to the contracts described above, As of June 30, 2016, the Company had the followings significant commitments:

In 2012, CEMEX Latam Holdings S.A. through its branch in Switzerland entered in to the following agreements:

i)  Agreement with CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V. for the use of CEMEX’s trademarks, This contract has a term of five years and is automatically
renewable for equal periods, unless it is terminated by either party to the contract providing notice one month before the applicable
termination date. The Company must pay annually the use of trademarks calculated based on annual net sales of goods and services and
transfer prices. For the periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the total expense for trademarks use recognized in the operating expenses
amounted $4,084 and $4,911, respectively.

ii)  Agreement with CEMEX Research Group, A.G. for the use, operation and enjoyment of assets. This contract has a term of five years and is
automatically renewable for equal periods, unless it is terminated by either party providing notice one month before the applicable
termination date. The Company must pay royalties calculated annually based on annual net sales of goods and services. For the periods
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the total royalty expense recognized in the operating expenses amounted to $17,745 and $18,664,
respectively.

iii)  Agreement for the rendering of administrative services with CEMEX Central, S.A. de C.V., for the technical, financial, marketing, legal,
human resources and information technology areas. This contract has a term of five years, automatically renewable for equal periods, unless
it is terminated by either part providing notice one month before the applicable termination date. The Company must pay annually the use of
these administrative services based on annual net sales of goods and services. For the periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the total
services expense recognized in the operating expenses amounted to $11,775 and $13,801, respectively.

In order to avoid potential conflicts of interest between the Parent Company and CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V., CEMEX Espafia and the subsidiaries of
both, in October 2012, the Parent Company entered into a Framework Agreement which became effective in November 2012, and which may be
modified or terminated by written agreement between the Parent Company, CEMEX and CEMEX Espaiia, for which the Parent Company will
require approval of its independent directors. In addition, the Framework Agreement shall cease to apply if the Company ceases to be subsidiary
of CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V., or if CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V., is no longer required to account for its investment in the Parent Company either on a
consolidated basis or under the equity method (or any other method that applies similar principles).

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement entered with CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V. and CEMEX Espaila, and in order to assist CEMEX, S.ABde C.V,
to accomplish its debt agreements, the Parent Company will require the prior consent of CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V. and CEMEX Esparia for:

a) Any consolidation, merger or partnership with a third party.
b) Any sale, lease, exchange or other disposition, acquisition to any person other than CEMEX.

¢) The issuance or sale of any shares or derivative equity securities or the adoption of any stock-based incentive plan, except for: (i) the
issuance of shares by the Company to CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V., and (ii) the issuance of shares under the long-term incentives plan that does
not exceed $1.75 million.

d) The declaration, decree or payment of dividends or other distribution by the Parent Company in connection with its shares other than (i)
through the issuance of common stocks of the Parent Company or the issuance of the right to subscribe ordinary shares of the Parent
Company to the shareholders of the Company proportionally, to the extent that is not paid or transferred to another person who is not part of
CEMEX (other than the Parent Company), cash or other assets of CEMEX (or any interest in such cash or assets) in connection with such
distribution or interest, and/or (ii) in proportion to the equity interest of each minority shareholder of the Parent Company, to the extent that
each shareholder receives at the same time its proportional share in any dividend, distribution or interest payment.

e) The creation, negotiation, grant or guarantee by the Parent Company of any type of debt, and/or the creation of liens on any of its assets, for
a total amount over $25 million at any time for both concepts.

f)  Provide loans or become creditor in connection with any type of debt, except: (i) with respect to commercial loans granted to customers on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business, and (ii) as deferred compensation in respect of any sale, lease, exchange or
other disposition that the Parent Company or any of its subsidiaries are authorized to execute without the consent of CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V.
and CEMEX Espania.
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Other commitments — continued

g) Take any action that could result on default for CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V. under any contract or agreement, under its financing agreements and
any refinancing, relocation or modifications thereto, to the extent that all CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V. notification obligations included in the
Framework Agreement are fulfilled for contracts or agreements other than: (i) the Credit Agreement and any refinancing, replacement or
modification thereto, and (ii) the issuance of minutes of CEMEX, S.A.B de C.V. and any replacement or modification thereof.

« As mentioned in note 20A, there are other commitments derived from the Parent Company’s lease of its corporate offices in Madrid with
CEMEX Espaiia as lessor signed on September 29, 2015, as well as a lease contract for its research and development offices in Switzerland. In
addition, the Company is subject to compliance with CEMEX’s debt agreements, negotiated, among others, with CEMEX, S.A.B. de C.V. itself,
each of which became effective upon the completion of the global offering.

« On June 23, 2015, the National Roads Institute (/nstituto Nacional de Vias or “INVIAS™) authorized CEMEX Colombia on its own account, risk
and financing, to perform the necessary works for the development of a public transportation infrastructure project denominated “Mejoramiento y
Mantenimiento de la via de acceso a la Zona de Uso publico y Zonas Anexas de la Zona Franca Permanente Especial Cementera del Magdalena
Medio”, including the construction of two roads to the municipality of Maceo and the township of La Susana. The term for the completion of the
works will be until December 31, 2016 and for the maintenance thereof the term shall extend during the economic exploitation of the Special Tax
Zone denominated Zona Franca Permanente Especial Cementera del Magdalena Medio.

«  On June 24, 2015, CEMEX Soluciones S.A.S., ISAGER S. A. and a third party subscribed a settlement agreement with Fiduciaria Bogota S.A, in
order to settle and resolve the claims between the parties concerning the design, execution and settlement of the urban infrastructure project E/
Recuerdo in the minucipallity of Monteria and especially in connection with a Fiduciary contract signed between the parties on July 9, 2013 for
the development of this housing project.

« During the third quarter of 2015, CEMEX Colombia initiated seven housing projects for the construction of 2,861 homes in the state of the Cesar
(Departamento del Cesar) in Colombia, located in the municipalities of San Alberto, Aguachica, Curumani, Astrea, Becerril, San Diego and
Gamarra, as part of agreements signed in 2014. The estimated selling price of the project is for an amount of approximately Col$133 billion (345
million). The houses will be delivered gradually as they are concluded. In connection with these projects, as of June 30, 2016, customers have
made advance payments deposited with a trustec agent for an amount of approximately Col $47 billion ($16 million) that partially guarantee
payment for the houses, and which will be released to CEMEX Colombia as houses are delivered to the satisfaction of such customers. As of June
30, 2016, these housing projects have a combined stage of completion of approximately 20.6%.

« On July 30, 2012, CEMEX signed a 10-year strategic agreement with IBM, which includes CEMEX Latam and its subsidiaries, pursuant to
which IBM will provide business processes services and information technology (“IT”). Moreover, IBM will provide business consulting to
detect and promote sustainable improvements in CEMEX’s profitability. The 10-year contract assigned to IBM is expected to generate cost
reductions to CEMEX, measured in respect to costs previously incurred in such activities, to the extent that processes efficiencies would be
achieved during such 10-year period. The services from IBM include: data processing services (back office) in finance, accounting and human
resources; as well as IT infrastructure services, support and maintenance of IT applications in the different countries in which CEMEX operates,
including CEMEX Latam and its subsidiaries. The cost to be incurred by the Company with IBM under this agreement is of approximately $4
million per year.

« On December 20, 2007, Cementos Bayano S.A. entered into a long-term clinker supply contract in the Republic of Panama with Cemento
Panam4, S.A. (currently Argos Panama, S.A.). The supply contract was established for a period of 10 years and includes annual partial deliveries
of clinker in metric tons ("MT") of 1,277,000 MT for the period from 2014 to 2015 and 2,086,498 MT for the period from 2016 to 2018.

20) CONTINGENCIES
21A) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES RESULTING FROM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

CEMEX Latam is involved in various significant legal processes, other than the tax-related procedures which are described in note 17B, the
resolutions of which are deemed probable and imply cash outflows or the delivery of other resources owned by CEMEX Latam. Therefore, certain
provisions have been recorded in the financial statements, representing the best estimate of payments thereof. As a result, CEMEX Latam considers
that there will not be significant payments in excess of the amounts already recognized.

As of June 30, 2016, the only significant case considered individually is as follows:

« In 1999, several companies belonging to the Laserna family filed an extra-contractual civil liability claim against CEMEX Colombia, by means
of which the plaintiffs demanded compensation for alleged damages caused to their land with effects on costs and lower production of their rice
crops as a result of solid pollutants expelled by the chimneys of the "Buenos Aires" and "Caracolito" cement production plants in the department
of Tolima. In January 2004, the Fourth Circuit Civil Court of Ibague issued a resolution ordering CEMEX Colombia a payment in favor of the
plaintiff’s equivalent to approximately $9 million. CEMEX Colombia appealed this resolution. On September 10, 2010, the Superior Court of
Ibague fully revoked the resolution accepting the defense arguments of CEMEX Colombia. As of June 30, 2016, there is a provision associated
with this litigation for approximately $9 million (note 16) considering the exchange rate at the same date and the process is in the Supreme Court
of Justice, where the appeal resource filed by the plaintiffs is being processed.
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21B) OTHERS CONTINGENCIES RESULTING FROM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As of June 30, 2016, CEMEX Latam is involved in various legal proceedings, in addition to those related to tax matters (note 17B), which have not
required the recognition of accruals based on the judgment elements at its disposal. The Company considers the likelihood of an adverse resolution to
be remote; nonetheless, it cannot assure that a favorable resolution in these proceedings will be obtained. The disclosure of facts of the most
significant proceedings with a quantification of the potential loss is as follows:

Market related proceedings

«  On September 5, 2013, the Colombian Industry and Commerce Authority (Superintendencia de Industria y Comercio or the “SIC”) issued a
resolution pursuant to which the SIC opened an investigation against five cement companies and 14 directors of those companies, including
CEMEX Colombia, its former legal representative and the current President of CEMEX Colombia, for allegedly breaching rules which prohibit:
a) to limit free competition and/or determining or maintaining unfair prices; b) direct or indirect price fixing agreements; and c) any market
sharing agreements between producers or distributors. In connection with the 14 executives under investigation, the SIC may sanction any
individual who collaborated, facilitated, authorized, executed or tolerated behavior that violates free competition rules. On October 7, 2013,
CEMEX Colombia responded the resolution and submitted evidence in its relief. If the alleged infringements are substantiated, aside from any
measures that could be ordered to remediate the alleged practices, penalties may be imposed by the SIC against each company being declared in
breach of the competition rules for an equivalent amount in Colombian pesos as of June 30, 2016 of up to $22 million for each violation, and an
equivalent of up to $0.4 million against those individuals found responsible of collaborating, facilitating, authorizing, executing or tolerating
behavior that violates free competition rules. It is cxpected that in during the course of the first quarter of 2016, the Superintendent Delegate for
Competition Protection will issue a non-binding report of the investigation, which could provide a recommendation to impose sanctions or to
close the investigation. CEMEX Latam considers the likelihood of an adverse resolution to be remote; nonetheless, is not able to assess with
certainty the likelihood of the SIC imposing any measures and/or penalties against CEMEX Colombia, but if imposed, they could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

«  On April 22, 2015, CEMEX Costa Rica, was notified by the Competition Authority (Direccidn de Apoyo a la Competencia) of a request for
information issued by the Ministry of Economy, Industry and Trade of Costa Rica in connection with an study in the cement market that would
allow the evaluation of price changes as well as to identify possible distortions and market barricrs among other issues in such country. The
aforementioned information request relates to volumes, prices and production costs from 2010 to date. The Company delivered the requested
information as of June 5, 2015 and collaborates as necessary with the study mentioned. As of June 30, 2016, the Company has not being
informed of any recent developments in connection with this market study.

«  On March 7, 2016, CEMEX Costa Rica was notified by the Competition Authority by order of the Ministry of Economy, Industry and Trade of
Costa Rica, of a request for information in order to initiate a customary preliminary investigation, to verify the existence of evidence in
anticompetitive practices, determine market shares in the cement market and document the geographical areas where cement companics operate.
This request for information was issued as a result of a claim issued by a third party. The company delivered the information requested on
March 18, 2016 and works as necessary in relation to the aforementioned requirement.

Environmental proceedings

«  On June 5, 2010, the District of Bogota’s Environmental Secretary (Secretaria Distrital de Ambiente de Bogotd or the “Environmental
Secretary™), ordered the suspension of CEMEX Colombia’s mining activities at El Tunjuelo quarry, located in Bogot4, as well as those of other
aggregates producers in the same area. The Environmental Secretary alleged that during the past 60 years CEMEX Colombia and the other
companies have illegally changed the course of the Tunjuclo River, have used the percolating waters without permission and have improperly
used the edge of the river for mining activities. In connection with the injunction, on June 5, 2010, CEMEX Colombia received a notification
from the Environmental Secretary informing the initiation of proceedings to impose fines against CEMEX Colombia based on the above
mentioned alleged environmental violations. CEMEX Colombia responded to the injunction by requesting that it be revoked based on the fact
that the mining activities at El Tunjuelo quarry are supported by the authorizations required by the applicable environmental laws and that all the
environmental impact statements submitted by CEMEX Colombia have been reviewed and permanently authorized by the Ministry of
Environment and Sustainable Development (Ministerio de Ambiente y Desarrollo Sostenible). On June 11, 2010, the local authorities in Bogotd,
in compliance with the Environmental Secretary’s decision, sealed off the mine to machinery and prohibited the removal of CEMEX’s
aggregates inventory. Although there is not an official quantification of the possible fine, the Environmental Secretary has publicly declared that
the fine could be up to the equivalent amount in Colombian pesos as of June 30, 2016 of approximately $103 million. The temporary injunction
has not compromise the production and supply of ready-mix concrete to the Company’s clients in Colombia. At this stage, CEMEX Latam
considers the likelihood of an adverse resolution to be remote; nonetheless, is not able to assess with certainty the likelihood of an adverse result
or potential damages which could be borne by CEMEX Colombia. An adverse resolution in this case could have a material adverse impact on
CEMEZX Latam’s results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

«  On March 11, 2015, 14 members of the surrounding communities of the cement plant in Panama filed a claim against Cemento Bayano, S.A
(“Cemento Bayano”), subsidiary of the Company in such country, for alleged breach of environmental rcgulations as a result of the non-metallic
mineral exploration in its quarries. Moreover, they requested the review of the environmental impact” studies that protect new raw materials’
quarries of the plant. These community members are being assisted by non-governmental organizations and environmentalist groups aimed to
impose unfounded penalties to the Company and to try to encourage the cancellation of the new quarries’ environmental impact studies. By
ruling from April 13, 2015, it was resolved to declare that the allegations in connection with water pollution, erosion control, air quality, impact
control of protected areas be worthy of investigation. Such resolution was notified on April 27, 2015; on May 5, 2015, a motion for
reconsideration was presented thereof. The Environmental Authority (Administracién Regional Metropolitana del Ministerio de Ambiente)
resolved not to support the motion for reconsideration and continued the investigation. On June 15 and 16, 2015 the Environmental Authority
conducted a physical inspection is corroborated that are not evidence of the allegations.
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Others contingencies resulting from legal proceedings — continued

In connection with the aforementioned inspection to Cemento Bayano, pursuant to the Technical Inspection Report issued on July 2, 2015, it was
concluded that the purported claims were not evidenced during the physical inspection. By means of an edict posted from December 23 to
December 24, 2015, the Environmental Authority notified Cemento Bayano a ten working days period to present its allegations and exculpatory
cvidence. On January 11, 2016, Cemento Bayano filed the written arguments and presented evidence within the administrative process. As of
June 30, 2016, the authorities have not issued any recent developments. Fines on environmental matters do not have a limit in the norm, but
depend on the severity of the damage, recidivism, investments level and the economic situation of the offender. At this stage, Cemento Bayano
considers remote the probability and adverse ruling; nonetheless, is not able to asses with certainty the likelihood of an adverse result or potential
damages which could be determined to the Company. An adverse resolution in this case could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s
results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to extensive laws and regulations on environmental issues in each of the jurisdictions in
which it operates. These laws and regulations impose increasingly stringent environmental protection standards regarding air pollutant emissions,
wastewater discharges, the use and handling of hazardous materials or waste disposal practices and the remediation of pollution or environmental
damage. Among other things, these laws and regulations expose the Company to a risk of substantial environmental costs and responsibilities,
including responsibilities associated with divested assets and past activities and, in some cases, to the acts and omissions of prior owners or operators
of a property or plant. Also, in some jurisdictions, certain environmental laws and regulations impose obligations without regard the fault or the
legality of the original activity at the moment of the actions which gave rise to the responsibility.

Other proceedings

-

In respect to the proceedings initiated in August 2005 wherecas CEMEX Colombia was indicated as a civil responsible third party in connection
with the premature damages of the concrete slabs in the Main North Highway of Transmilenio’s public transport system in Bogota, where it was
used ready-mix concrete and flowable fill supplied by CEMEX Colombia and other members of the Colombian Association of Concrete
Producers ("ASOCRETO"). The plaintiffs argue that the material supplied did not meet the quality standards offered by CEMEX Colombia and
the other defendants, and that information about the qualities and properties of the products offered was insufficient and inadequate, on October
10, 2012, a Circuit Criminal Court in Bogota sentenced the former director of the Institute of Urban Development (the "IDU"), and two former
officials of the IDU to 85 months in prison and a fine equivalent to approximately $10, as a result of the purported offenses of culpable
peculation and unlawful negotiation of contracts, in the execution of the works of the aforementioned and declared the invalidity of any charges
against two officials of ("ASOCRETOQ"). On August 30, 2013, as a result of an appeal by the IDU, the Superior Court of Bogota resolved, among
other things: to reduce to 60 months the sentence, to impose a collective fine on those officials in Colombian pesos for an amount equivalent to
approximately $37 million at the exchange rate as of June 30, 2016, and to revoke the nullity decreed in favor of ASOCRETO’ officers, and
ordered the first instance judge to issue a judgment concerning the guilt or innocence of such ASOCRETO’ officers.

On January 21, 2015, the Circuit Criminal Court of Bogota declared the prescription of the criminal action initiated against the ASOCRETO
officers. The judge accepted the arguments presented by CEMEX Colombia in respect that the accused officers were not public servants;
therefore, declared the prescription of the criminal action since 2012. The decision was subject to appeal and was subsequently confirmed by the
Criminal Chamber of the Superior Court of Bogota. As a result of the criminal action against the ASOCRETO officers being prescribed, also
ceased the action against CEMEX Colombia in its condition of supposedly civil responsible third party.

In connection with these proceedings related with the premature damages of Transmilenio’s public transport system, in which the costs of repair
works have been calculated in an amount in Colombian pesos equivalent to approximately $34 million at the exchange rate as of June 30, 2016,
an Administrative Court in Bogota issued a first instance resolution, considering most of the arguments raised in its defense by CEMEX
Colombia, recognizing that the flowable fill (supplied by CEMEX Colombia) is not the cause of the purported damages, and that the
aforementioned damages resulted from failures in planning, execution and supervision of the work. The first instance resolution was appealed;
nonetheless, considering conditions precedent of the case, it would be difficult for the second instance judge to revoke the previous resolution.

Likewise, in related proceedings, the Administrative Tribunal of Cundinamarca declared the nullity of five class actions filed in connection with
the aforementioned damages, and decided to proceed with the popular action filed by a citizen. To this class action are linked the IDU, the Mayor
of Bogota, the builder, the controller and the suppliers of materials for this work.

CEMEX Colombia participated in this project solely and exclusively as a supplier of materials, which were reccived by the builder to satisfaction
of the work, and no quality claims have been raised to the date of these financial statements. As of June 30, 2016, CEMEX Latam considers the
likelihood of an adverse resolution to be remote; nonetheless, an unfavorable resolution could have an adverse effect on its results of operations,
liquidity or financial position.
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Others contingencies resulting from legal proceedings — continued

In connection with the construction of the new cement plant in the municipality of Maceo, Department of Antioquia, in Colombia (note 13), on
August 28, 2012, CEMEX Colombia signed a memorandum of understanding ("MOU") with the entity CI CALIZAS S.A. for the transfer to
CEMEX Colombia of the land, the mining title and the free zone for the construction of the new cement plant. Subscquent to the signing of the
MOU, one of CI CALIZAS S.A.’s former partners (he had transferred his shares two years before signing the MOU) was linked to a legal
process for expiration of ownership and, as a result of this proceeding, the Attorney General's Office (Fiscalia General de la Nacion or the
"Prosecutor”), among other measures, suspended CI CALIZAS S.A.’s rights to dispose of the assets offered to CEMEX Colombia. In order to
protect its interests, CEMEX Colombia joined the expiration of ownership proceeding, requesting the inadmissibility of the measures that
affected the transfer of full ownership rights of the related assets and the rights acquired pursuant to the MOU. Considering CEMEX Colombia’s
efforts, CEMEX Colombia signed with the Drugs National Department (Direccién Nacional de Estupefacientes), then depository of the affected
assets which functions after its liquidation were assumed by the Administrator of Special Assets (Sociedad de Activos Especiales S.4.5.), a lease
contract pursuant to which CEMEX Colombia is duly authorized to continue with the necessary works for the construction and operation of the
cement plant, and consequently the lease protects all infrastructure works and investments already made by CEMEX Colombia. On May 2, 2016,
the Prosecutor decided to deny the request for inadmissibility of the action of asset forfeiture affecting the land, the mining title and the free zone
that conform the Maceo project and which are subject of the MOU signed with CI CALIZAS. The proceeding will extend over time (from two to
four years). For the prosecutor it is necessary to collect evidence clearly demonstrating the origin of the resources used to acquire the property
subject to expiration of ownership. The prosecutor expressed it is not yet clear the decoupling of CI CALIZAS partner, and on the contrary,
considers there are indications of involvement of this former partner in the business of such entity, after his retirement in 2010.

CEMEX Colombia is confident that after all proceedings are exhausted. It would obtain from the Prosecutor a favorable resolution that would
permit the transfer of the assets affected in the transaction with CI CALIZAS.

As of June 30, 2016, CEMEX Colombia has made investments of approximately $261 million in the new plant in Maceo. CEMEX Colombia
considers that its investments in the development of the plant are protected by virtue of the lease contract. Nonetheless, if there is a final adverse
resolution of the authority affecting the assets subject to the expiration of ownership proceeding, and if CEMEX Colombia exhausts all legal
resources available against the adverse resolution, any such resolution could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of
operations, liquidity or financial condition.

The DIAN informed that considering that CEMEX Colombia has made the majority of the investments in its own name, CEMEX Colombia
should proceed to transfer those investments to the entity Zona Franca Especial Cementera del Magdalena Medio S.A.S. (“ZOMAM?”), and attest
its status as shareholder of ZOMAM, in order to justify the investments made in the construction project. In the event of a failed attestation, the
entity ZOMAM would incur in breach of its commitments, and therefore, the DIAN would be obliged to declare this situation and the loss of the
special tax zone status of ZOMAM.

Considering the above, CEMEX Colombia through an extraordinary Board of Directors’ meeting held on December 11, 2015, approved:

i) concluding the acquisition of all shares of the entity ZOMAM, and

ii) the transfer of assets from CEMEX Colombia to ZOMAM as an in-kind equity contribution in order to comply with the request of the
DIAN.

In connection with the aforementioned, all legal documentation and accounting records were made in CEMEX Colombia and ZOMAM, and the
DIAN was informed regarding the compliance with the requirements in order to keep ZOMAM’s status of special tax zone.

On July 30, 2008, the Panamanian Authority of Civil Aeronautics (dutoridad de Aerondutica Civil de Panama or AAC) initially refused the
application of Cemento Bayano, to build structures above the permitted height restriction applicable to certain areas surrounding the Calzada
Larga Airport which affected the construction of the cement plant’s second line. On October 14, 2008, as per Cemento Bayano’s request for
reconsideration, the AAC granted permission for the construction of the tallest building of the second line, under the following conditions: that
(a) Cemento Bayano assumes any liability arising from any incident or accident caused by the construction of such building, and (b) there would
be no further permissions for additional structures. In connection with the construction of the remaining 12 buildings of the second line of the
plant, on March 13, 2009, the AAC issued an explanatory note stating that: (a) should an accident occur in the Calzada Larga Airport’s
perimeter, an investigation shall be conducted in order to determine the causc and further responsibility; and (b) there will be no further
permissions for additional structures of the same height as the tallest structure already authorized.

As a result, additional permits may be obtained as long as the structures are lower than the tallest building, on a case by case analysis to be
conducted by the authority. Cemento Bayano filed an authorization request for the construction of the project’s 12 remaining structures. On
September 11, 2009, the AAC issued a resolution authorizing 3 of the 12 remaining structurcs and denying permits to 9 additional structures
above the permitted height restriction applicable to certain areas surrounding Calzada Large Airport. On September 16, 2009, Cemento Bayano
requested the AAC to reconsider its denial. On May 20, 2010, the AAC issued a report stating that all vertical structures erected by Cemento
Bayano complied with the applicable signaling and lighting requirements in order to receive the respective authorization; nonetheless. On July 17,
2015 was held meeting with the Legal Services of AAC in order to give impetus to proceedings pending approval, to this date waiting the
resolution replenishment the expedient since it was stray. As of June 30, 2016, the AAC had not yet issued a ruling regarding the request to
review the remaining 9 structures.

25



CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Financial Statements
For the six-month periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Others contingencies resulting from legal proceedings — continued

To this date, the risk has decreased substantially since the buildings have been built and are operating, and the likelihood of such buildings being
closed down by the authorities is very low, but would be fully mitigated when Cemento Bayano obtains the approval of the authority, which is
expected to be accomplish during this new Government administration. However, .if adversely resolved, and after exhausting all available
recourses, the Company cannot predict the resolutions that may be issued or whether such resolutions would have an adverse impact on its results
of operations, liquidity or financial condition. Moreover, the Company is unable to assess with certainty the likelihood of any incident or accident
occurring as a result of the aforementioned constructions, and the responsibility, if any, that would be allocated to Cemento Bayano, but if any
major incident or accident were to occur and if Cemento Bayano were to be held liable, any responsibility that would be formally allocated to
Cemento Bayano could have a material adverse impact on the results of operations, liquidity and financial condition of the Company.

In addition, as of June 30, 2016, the Company is involved in various legal proceedings of minor impact that have arisen in the ordinary course of
business. These proceedings involve: 1) product warranty claims; 2) claims for environmental damages; 3) indemnity claims relating to acquisitions;
and 4) other similar claims brought against us that have arisen in the ordinary course of business.

21)  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In connection with the issuance in the secondary market of ordinary bonds maturing in July 2025 with an interest rate of 8.3% made by CEMEX
Colombia made in July 2015 (note 15), based on the rules set forth in clause 4.10 of the offering prospectus of such ordinary bonds and considering that
during the annual period from July 9, 2015 and July 8, 2016 the trading volume of the securities in the secondary market was less than Col$5,000 million,
on July 12, 2016, CEMEX Colombia launched a tender offer to all bond holders at a price equal to 100% of the outstanding principal amount plus
accrued and unpaid interest. The aforementioned tender offer was accepted by all bond holders on July 13, 2016.

The acquisition of the securities by CEMEX Colombia does not represent the cancellation of such securitics according to the second paragraph of article
2 of the 964 Law of 2003.

22) MAIN SUBSIDIARIES

The Parent Company's main direct and indirect subsidiaries as of June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 are as follows:

Subsidiary Country Activity % of interest
Corporacién Cementera Latinoamericana, S.L.U, ! ..ooovrioriiercecneerseesereceenes Spain Parent 100.0
CEMEX Bogota Investments, B.V. ' ......oooiiiiicneissesesenssessessscnsenneeeeeennnes The Netherlands Parent 100.0
CEMEX Colombia S.A. ......... ..... Colombia Operative 99.7
CEMEX (COSARICAN Bl svvsvvivsusessinssissesss o s sinon i onser s sss iy oo s s Costa Rica Operative 99.1
CEMEX Nicaragua, -SuA: s i S hiis i aanimmivts o TN Caragia Operative 100.0
CEMEX Finance Latam, B.V. % ..o .. The Netherlands Finance 100.0
Cemento Bayano, S.A. ... ... Panama Operative 99.5
Cimentos Vencemos do Amazonas, Ltda. . ..o, Brazil Operative 100.0
CEMEX Guatemala, S.A. ....cooeiiiiiicicrccsis s ... Guatemala Operative 100.0
Equipos para uso en Guatemala, S.A. ..., Guatemala Operative 100.0
CEMEX El Salvador: S i\vermmssnarmmassnanmiimiminmnnsnensaresEl Salvador Operative 100.0
Inversiones SECOYA, S.A. ... INICATAGUA Operative 100.0

1 CEMEX Latam Holdings, S.A., indircctly controls through Corporacién Cementera Latinoamericana, S.L.U. and CEMEX Bogotd Investments, B.V., the
operations of the Parent Company in Colombia, Costa Rica, Nicaragua, Panama, Brazil, Guatemala and El Salvador. On June 22, 2016, the management of Cemex
Bogot4 Investments B.V. and Corporacién Cementera Latinoamericana, S.L.U. signed a joint merger project by absorption of the first entity by the second
company, which is expected to be completed in 2016.

2 Cemex Latam Finance B.V. was constituted on July 3, 2015 with the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 7, 2015, prior
favorable report of the Audit Committee.
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